
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
231st MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Thursday, May 4, 2017
9:30 a.m.

5000 Overlook Avenue, SW
Room 407

I. Call to Order (Chairman Matthew Brown)

II. Roll Call (Linda Manley, Board Secretary)

Ill.      Approval of April 6, 2017 Minutes

lV.     Chairman’s Overview

V. Committee Reports
1. Environmental Quality and Operations Committee (Howard Gibbs)
2. Human  Resource and Labor Relations Committee (Bradley Frome)
3. Audit Committee (Nicholas Majett)
4. Finance and Budget Committee (Matthew Brown)

Vl.     Issues of General Interest

VII.   CEO/General Manager’s Report (George Hawkins)

VIIl.    Summary of Contracts (FYI)

lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

1. Approval to Execute Contract No. 17-PR-DFM-02, AN Exterior, Inc. – Resolution No. 
17-25 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

2. Approval to Execute Option Year One of Contract No. 16-PR-DWT-13A, Urban Service 
Systems Corporation – Resolution No.17-26 (Recommended by Environmental Quality
and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

3. Approval to add Funding to Contract No. 16-PR-DMS-43, Electric Motor & Contracting 
Co., Inc. (EMC) – Resolution No. 17-27 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and 
Operations Committee 04/20/17)

4. Approval to Execute Supplemental Agreement No. 1 of Contract No. DCFA-#463-
WSA, AECOM Services of DC – Resolution No. 17-28 (Recommended by 
Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

DC Water Board of Directors - I.  Call to Order (Chairman Matthew Brown)

1



2

5. Approval to Execute Contract No. DCFA #485-WSA, Pure Technologies US, Inc. –
Resolution No. 17-29 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations 
Committee 04/20/17)

6. Approval to Execute Contract No. DCFA #490-WSA, Arcadis District of Columbia, PC 
– Resolution No. 17-30 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations 
Committee 04/20/17)

7. Approval to Execute Change Order No. 7 of Contract No. 130060, American 
Contracting & Environmental Services – Resolution No. 17-31 (Recommended by 
Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

8. Approval to Execute the Extension of the Credit Facility for the Series 2014B 
Subordinate Bonds – Resolution No. 17-32 (Recommended by Finance and Budget 
Committee 04/27/17)

X. Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

1. Approval to Execute Change Order No. 7 of Contract No. 070110, CPP Construction 
Company – Resolution No. 17-33 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and 
Operations Committee 04/20/17)

2. Approval to Execute Change Order No. 5 of Contract No. 140160, SAK Construction,
LLC – Resolution No. 17-34 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and 
Operations Committee 04/20/17)

3. Approval to Execute Contract No. 150170, J. Fletcher Creamer & Son, Inc. –
Resolution No. 17-35 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations 
Committee 04/20/17)

Xl.   Executive Session – To discuss legal, confidential and privileged matters pursuant to 
Section 2-575(b) of the D.C. Official Code1
Xll. Adjournment (Chairman Matthew Brown)

1 The DC Water Board of Directors may go into executive session at this meeting pursuant to the 
District of Columbia Open Meetings Act of 2010, if such action is approved by a majority vote of the 
Board members who constitute a quorum to discuss: matters prohibited from public disclosure 
pursuant to a court order or law under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(1); contract negotiations under 
D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(1); legal, confidential or privileged matters under D.C. Official Code § 
2-575(b)(4); collective bargaining negotiations under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(5); facility 
security under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(8); disciplinary matters under D.C. Official Code § 2-
575(b)(9); personnel matters under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(10);proprietary matters under 
D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(11); decision in an adjudication action under D.C. Official Code § 2-
575(b)(13); civil or criminal matters where disclosure to the public may harm the investigation 
under D.C. Official Code § 2-575(b)(14), and other matters provided in the Act.
Upcoming Committee Meetings (5000 Overlook Avenue SW (Blue Plains – 4th Floor)

• Governance Committee – Wednesday, May 10th @ 9:00 a.m.

∑ Human Resource and Labor Relations Committee – Wednesday, May 10th @ 11:00 
a.m. (with Union Presidents)

∑ Environmental Quality and Operations Committee – Thursday, May 18th @ 9:30 a.m.

∑ DC Retail Water and Sewer Rates Committee – Thursday, May 25th @ 9:30 a.m.

∑ Finance and Budget Committee – Thursday, May 25th @ 11:00 a.m.

DC Water Board of Directors - I.  Call to Order (Chairman Matthew Brown)

2



1

District of Columbia

Water and Sewer Authority

Board of Directors

Environmental Quality and 
Operations Committee Meeting
Thursday, April 20, 2017

9:30 a.m.

MEETING MINUTES

Committee Members DC Water Staff Present 
Howard Gibbs, Chairperson George Hawkins, CEO/General Manager
Anthony Giancola Linda Manley, Secretary to the Board
Mathew Brown, Board Chairman Meena Gowda, Deputy General Counsel
David Lake Leonard Benson, Chief Engineer

I. Call to Order

Mr. Gibbs called the meeting to order at 9:30 A.M. 

II. AWTP STATUS UPDATES

1. BPAWTP Performance

Mr. Aklile Tesfaye, Assistant General Manager for Wastewater Treatment, began the 
update by reporting the monthly average influent flow for March 2017 was 271 MGD.
There was 10 MG excess flow during this reporting period. Total precipitation was 3.2
inches for the month of March. 

Mr. Tesfaye highlighted the Plant Influent Flow Trend graph noting that for any given 
month the influent flow is weather dependent, the 12-month rolling average influent flow 
of the Plant has remained at or below 300 MGD since February 2011. The Committee 
inquired as to who sets the permit limits corresponding to Plant performance. Mr. Tesfaye 
responded that the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) sets all the Plant 
performance related permit limits.

Mr. Tesfaye noted that the enhanced nitrogen removal facility is performing well; 

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

7



2

producing a total nitrogen (TN) concentration of 3.48 mg/l. The effluent quality is on track 
to remain below the NPDES permit annual load limit of 4,377,580 lbs. The Plant 
performance was excellent with 100% permit compliance.  The Committee inquired if the 
amount of flow coming into the Plant influences the amount of total nitrogen present in 
the system. Mr. Tesfaye responded that plant influent flows and loads, including TN, vary 
seasonally and both flows and loads influence concentrations.

The CHP facility generated an average of 165 MWH/day, making up 26% of total energy 
consumed at Blue Plains (i.e., 642 MWH/day) while the average energy purchased from 
Pepco Energy Services (PES) was 477 MWH/day. 

The Committee inquired if maintenance on the Heat Recovery Steam Generator is 
conducted annually. Mr. Tesfaye responded that the inspection is conducted on an annual 
basis. The Committee also commented on the upward trend of electricity use and inquired 
if this was considered typical for this time of year. Mr. Tesfaye replied flow, load and 
amount of solids processed were all factors influencing the amount of energy consumed 
by the Plant and that as a result, Winter and Spring months experience an increase in 
energy consumption.

Mr. Tesfaye briefly mentioned that DC Water staff is working closely with Maryland 
Department of the Environment (MDE) to obtain a letter of authorization for potential soil 
blenders, a requirement for their use of biosolids products. DC Water staff will be meeting 
with MDE to make a determination and develop a template for use by soil blenders. DC 
Water’s application for the Virginia distribution and marketing permit was submitted and 
is under review by the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (VA DEQ). Receipt 
of the final draft permit is expected by summer 2017.

The Committee inquired as to the progress of the Annamox based DEMON 
deammonification process facility. Mr. Tesfaye stated that the facility is expected to be 
online in June 2017. The Committee further inquired if the facility will be the largest facility 
of its type when commissioned and if DC Water would prepare a presentation to the 
Committee about the process facility in the near future. Mr. Tesfaye confirmed that the 
facility will be the largest of its kind in North America and also stated DC Water will prepare 
a presentation to the Committee.

III. SECURITY MEASURES

Mr. Steve Caldwell, Director, Security, DC Water, gave an update on DC Water’s security 
measures and operations. Mr. Caldwell mentioned that at this time, there is no specific 
threat facing the Authority but that there were general threats faced by the Authority due 
to:

∑ National capital status
∑ Population size and growth
∑ DC Water’s technology leadership
∑ DC Water’s operational size (i.e., it operates the world’s largest Advanced 

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

8



3

Wastewater Treatment Plant)
∑ Tourism, visitors and businesses (i.e., more than 21million visitors per annum in 

the District
∑ and access control
∑ Property patrols, remote visits
∑ Process compliance and asset tracking & management

Mr. Caldwell next stated that DC Water’s Security department liaises with multiple local 
and federal agencies and their security teams. In particular, he highlighted the 
coordination with the Water Information Sharing Analysis Center (WaterISAC), an FBI 
sponsored program that among other things, alerts participating members about utility 
related security incidents.

DC Water’s Security operations all feed to its Physical Security Information Management 
(PSIM) program. The PSIM components generate data and feed the information to the 
DC Water Command Center. The Committee inquired if this system will be moving to the 
new headquarters. Mr. Caldwell replied that each location will have its own stand-alone 
security measures and that the PSIM will be located in Blue Plains.

Mr. Caldwell stated that due to the Authority’s security measures that have been 
implemented, there has been increased reporting/detection of alleged workplace 
violence, property damage/loss, time card fraud, accidents & incidents, unsecured 
properties and breach events which led to better security management.

Mr. Caldwell summarized to the Committee three phases of security related projects that 
have and will be implemented in the future.

In conclusion, Mr. Caldwell outlined the long-term efforts planned as part of DC Water’s 
Security Master Plan.

The Committee inquired if DC Water Security was being involved early on in the design 
process of facilities and infrastructure to attain maximum level of coordination and 
cooperation. Mr. Caldwell responded in the affirmative. The Committee further inquired 
how access to DC Water facilities was being controlled. Mr. Caldwell replied that although 
access control can be challenging due to the large number of contractor staff present in 
the Plant and the large number of turnover of contractor staff, DC Water Security works 
very closely with the contractors to obtain current list of their employees and continuously 
validates and updates their site clearance documentation. The Committee also inquired 
if DC Water’s Security process is audited by an independent auditor. Mr. Caldwell replied 
that independent agencies contracted by DC Water conduct vulnerability assessments 
and audits of the system. The Committee requested a tour of the security facilities and 
command center.

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

9



4

IV. ACTION ITEMS

The Committee recommended seven joint-use and three non-joint use contracts for 
Board Approval.  

JOINT USE

1. Contract No. 17-PR-DFM-02 – Biosolids Building Roof Replacement, AN 
Exterior, Inc.

2. Contract No. 16-PR-DWT-13A – Preliminary Treatment Facility 
Grit/Screening Hauling, Urban Services Systems Corp.

3. Contract No. 16-PR-DMS-43 – Repair and Rehabilitation of Various 
Process Assets, Electric Motor and Contracting Co., Inc.

4. DCFA #463-WSA – Construction Management Services, Anacostia River 
Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) Control Projects, Division Z – Poplar 
Point Pumping Station Replacement and Main Outfall Sewers Diversion, 
AECOM Services of DC

5. Contract No. #130060 – Potomac Pumping Station Rehabilitation Phase 
III, American Contracting & Environmental Services

6. DCFA #485 – Condition Assessment of Large Diameter Water Mains and 
Major Sewers, Pure Technologies, US Ltd

7. DCFA #490 – Condition Assessment of Large Diameter Water Mains and 
Major Sewers, Arcadis District of Columbia, PC

NON JOINT USE

1. Contract No. 070110 – Rehabilitation and Upgrade of the Fort Reno 
Pumping Station, CPP Construction Company

2. Contract No. 140160 – Local Sewer Rehabilitation #1, SAK Construction 
LLC

3. Contract No. 150170 – Small Diameter Water Main Cleaning and Lining 
11C, J. Fletcher Creamer & Son, Inc.

V. WATER QUALITY MONITORING

Mr. Charles Kiely, Assistant General Manager for Customer Care and Operations, gave 
a brief update regarding water quality monitoring activities, specifically, regarding Total 
Coliform testing and Lead and Copper Rule (LCR) testing. Mr. Kiely mentioned that there 
was one positive test for Total Coliform in April and per regulation, further downstream 
tests were conducted to either corroborate or rule out the presence of the bacteria. 
Additional downstream tests conducted by DC Water revealed no other positives. In 
regards to LCR testing, Mr. Kiely mentioned that the laboratory has conducted tests on
31 samples of the 80 that have to be collected and that results show the corrosion control
program is performing exceptionally well.

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

10



5

VI. OTHER BUSINESS/EMERGING ISSUES

Mr. George Hawkins, General Manager and CEO, DC Water, informed the Committee 
that DC Water will take to the Retail Rates Committee the issues concerning a private 
development and questions raised relating to the Water Service Replacement Fee 
(WSRF). The Committee inquired if it would be possible to schedule the meeting with 
the Retail Rates Committee sooner than later. Mr. Hawkins responded that staff will look 
at availabilities in the Committee calendar and schedule accordingly.

VII. ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 11:18 a.m. 

Follow-up Items

1. Assistant General Manager, Blue Plains. Prepare a presentation to the Committee 
about the DEMON Annamox process once the facility is commissioned. 

2. General Manager, DC Water: Arrange a tour of security facilities and command 
center for Committee members.

3. Chief Procurement Officer, DC Water:  Make arrangements to invite Committee 
members during presentations to the Governance Committee regarding 
performance of completed contracts.

4. General Manager, DC Water: Schedule meeting with the Retail Rates Committee 
to discuss potential modifications to the Water Service Replacement Fee 
structure.

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

11



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Human Resources and Labor Relations 

Committee
April 25th, 2017

4:00pm
(via conference call)

MEETING MINUTES

Committee Members Present DC Water Staff Present
Bradley Frome, Chairman Henderson Brown, General Counsel
Ellen Boardman, Vice Chair Linda R. Manley, Board Secretary   
Rachna Butani-Bhatt
Anthony Giancola
Matthew Brown, Chairman of the Board 

1.  Call to Order

Chairman Bradley Frome called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m. 

2.  Executive Session

Mr. Frome requested a motion to move into Executive Session to discuss personnel matters 
pursuant to D.C. Official Code Section 2-575(b)(10).  Ms. Manley conducted a roll call and 
the Committee convened into an Executive Session at 4:03 p.m. 

The Committee reconvened into open session and adjourned at 5:05 p.m. 

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

12



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

Board of Directors

Audit Committee

Thursday, April 27, 2017

9:30 a.m.

Meeting Minutes

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Nicholas Majett, Chairman
Matthew Brown, Board Chairman 
Elisabeth Feldt, Committee Member
Bonnie Kirkland, Committee Member
Sarah Motsch, Committee Member
Howard Gibbs, Committee Member
Rachna Butani Bhatt, Committee Member

INTERNAL AUDIT STAFF PRESENT
Dan Whelan, RSM US LLP
Jill Reyes, RSM US LLP
Kelly Johnson, RSM US LLP
Matthew Blondell, RSM US LLP
Vanita Kataria, RSM US LLP
Charles Barley, RSM US LLP

DC WATER STAFF PRESENT
Henderson Brown, General Counsel
Biju George, Chief Operating Officer
Korey Gray, Contract Compliance Officer
Bob Hunt, Director Finance
Anthony Mack, Director, Wastewater 
Treatment Maintenance
Linda Manley, Board Secretary

Call to Order (Item 1)
Mr. Nicholas Majett called the Audit Committee meeting to order at 9:31am.

Internal Audit Update (Item 2)
RSM Partner, Dan Whelan, presented the FY 2017 internal audit plan status update. Mr. 
Majett noted that Board Member Mr. Anthony Giancola could not attend this meeting but 
had submitted questions. Mr. Majett stated he would provide these questions to the 
Internal Auditors for response. 

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

13



Ms. Kelly Johnson presented the status of prior audit findings. For audit findings prior to 
FY 2015, there are 5 action deferred items, 6 items still open, and 1 item that is closed. 
For audit findings in FY 2015, there is only 1 action deferred item, 3 open items, 8 items 
pending testing, and 62 items that are closed. Ms. Johnson noted that all action deferred 
items were policies that are pending union approval. For FY 2016 audit findings, there 
are 25 open items, 16 items pending testing, and 9 items that are closed. Ms. Johnson 
noted that annual budget and planning was not on the list, as the report would be 
presented later in the meeting.

Ms. Johnson also presented an update on the COR/COTR training and compliance 
monitoring implementation by management per the Contract Monitoring & Compliance 
Audit Part II findings. These findings were presented to the Committee in previous 
Committee meetings, and it was requested to have periodic updates on the management 
action plan. Ms. Johnson explained that management has decided to develop in-house 
training for CORs and COTRs. This will be finalized by the end April. These trainings will 
be ongoing, and will happen quarterly. As these trainings continue, Management will 
determine if the frequency needs to be increased or decreased on a case by case basis.
Ms. Johnson added that Phase III has begun, and a vendor performance management 
application was selected on March 31. Implementation of the application is to begin in 
April, with a target completion by the end of September. 

Mrs. Jill Reyes followed with the presentation of the Annual Budgeting and Planning 
Internal Audit Report. The scope of the internal audit was to evaluate the effectiveness of 
budget monitoring techniques, and to analyze budget trends for different departments. 
Mrs. Reyes noted that RSM attended and observed the budget development meetings 
between March 2016 and December 2016. Ms. Reyes also presented the operating 
revenue and expenditures budgeted vs actuals for FY 2013 – FY 2015. The actual 
operating revenue for all three years fell within 2% of what was budgeted, and the actual 
operating expenses were 7 – 13% lower than budgeted expenditures for all three years. 
The internal audit resulted in one reportable observation of moderate risk. The 
observation is lack of an automated budget tool. Internal Audit recommended that the 
budget tool be considered as part of the upgrade or replacement of DC Water’s Enterprise 
Resource Planning (ERP) system. Management has begun planning for the 
implementation. Mr. Biju George confirmed upon inquiry that the ERP system would 
include both operating and capital budgets.

Ms. Johnson provided a progress report on the Automated Meter Reading (AMR) 
Implementation. This project consists of two phases: Phase I consists of the project 
initiation and business process review, and Phase II consists of an IT Design and 
implementation review. The Internal Audit for Phase I includes evaluating the program 
implementation plan and meter installation process, assessing the inventory 
management process and controls implemented by the installation vendor, assessing the 
meter disposal process and controls, review billing adjustments for customers with new

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

14



meters, and providing timely recommendations regarding overall project risk 
management. Chairman Brown asked for further explanation of the billing adjustments. 
Mr. George stated that he would provide the committee a copy of the billing adjustment 
process. At the time of the meeting, the project was in week 12 of the implementation. 
Ms. Johnson communicated that the plan was to have 9,500 total installs by week 12, but 
to date there are 6,725. Due to weather implications, the actual number of installs has 
been lower than the planned. There are 83,861 installs remaining. Ms. Johnson also 
stated that should would provide additional information regarding the total planned installs 
and remaining installs that were reported. s. Next steps include completing Phase I and 
completing testing around disposals. Initial stages of Phase II have begun as the IT 
Internal Audit team has performed some walkthrough meetings with Management.

Mr. Matthew Blondell presented the Department of Maintenance Services Work Order 
Management Internal Audit. The scope of the internal audit was to obtain an 
understanding of the Work Order Management process, including the policies and 
procedures in place; determining the design effectiveness of the controls identified; and 
to evaluate the use of the Maximo Computerized Maintenance Management System. The 
Internal Audit presented the high risk observation, noting there are 3 moderate risk 
observations in the full report. The high risk observation is in regards to the documented 
supervisory review of work orders within Maximo. Mr. Blondell stated that review of 
preventative maintenance work orders are not being documented within Maximo. Mr. 
Anthony Mack, Director, Wastewater Treatment Maintenance, informed the Board that 
preventative maintenance work orders typically are documented on paper, so approvals 
and flow of the work orders were not represented in Maximo. Management is redesigning 
the process in order to resolve the issue. Ms. Sarah Motsch requested a breakdown of 
preventative, predictive and corrective maintenance by plant area. Mr. Mack stated he 
would provide this information in coordination with the Internal Auditors. 

Mrs. Reyes and Ms. Vanita Kataria presented the Purchasing Card (P-Card) Internal 
Audit. The scope of the internal audit was to review the Authority’s policies and 
procedures, including internal controls over P-Cards and Travel Cards; evaluate the 
adequacy of program administration and oversight evaluate the appropriateness of P-
Card purchases, as well as perform analytical procedures surrounding transactions; and 
to identify process improvement opportunities and recommend internal control 
enhancements to improve overall P-Card and Travel Card programs. There are currently 
75 P-Card holders, 33 Travel Card holders, and P-Cards accounted for approximately 
$1.8 million in FY 2016, which was less than 1% of the Authority’s overall operating 
expenditures. There are 6 Travel Card holders that are not P-Card holders. Despite such 
a low percentage of the operating expenditures, this is still considered a high-risk area 
since certain employees are able to make purchases on behalf of the Authority. The 
average dollar amount per transaction is $175, and most (54 of 75) cards have a $2,000 
single transaction limit, and $5,000 monthly spending limit. 

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

15



Internal Audit presented the two high risk reportable observations, noting there are 2 
moderate and 2 low risk observations in the full report. The first high risk observation 
included missing reconciliations and late reconciliation submissions by P-Card holders. 
Internal Audit found 8 of the 65 sample reconciliations were missing, and believes that 
the reconciliations were completed, but were lost from either filing or refiling the 
reconciliations. Management’s action plan includes electronically storing reconciliations, 
and enforcing penalties to P-Card holders that submit late reconciliations. The second 
high risk observation is due to a lack of oversight and monitoring of Travel Card 
purchases. The resolution to this observation includes an updated policy and monitoring 
similar to the P-Card process.

Mrs. Reyes provided an update on the Hotline. She informed the Board that since the 
February 2017 Audit Committee meeting, 14 calls have been made. Of those 14 calls, 4 
of them have been fraud claims. Of the 4 fraud claims, 2 have been closed, and the 2 still 
open pertain to the same issue. There are currently 11 open cases, several of which are 
for the same or similar issues.

Executive Session (Item 3)
There was a motion to move into Executive Session by Chairman Majett to discuss legal, 
confidential, and privileged matters pursuant to Section 2-575(b)(1) of the D.C. Official 
Code.  It was so moved and seconded and motion carried. The room was cleared of non-
Executive members and all public individuals. The Audit Committee went into Executive 
Section at approximately 10:16 AM.

Adjournment (Item 4)
The Audit Committee meeting adjourned at 10:45am.

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

16



DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

Board of Directors

Finance and Budget Committee  

Thursday, April 27, 2017

11:00 a.m.

MEETING MINUTES

Committee Members DC Water Staff
Matthew Brown, Board Chairman George Hawkins, CEO & General Manager
Adam Ortiz                                                                            Henderson Brown, General Counsel 
Howard Gibbs Robert Hunt, Chief Financial Officer (Acting)
Sarah Motsch Lola Oyeyemi, Director, Budget
Ana Harvey Linda Manley, Secretary to the Board

Syed Khalil, Director, Rates and Revenue

Public Financial Management (PFM)
Christopher Lover, Managing Director

Call to Order

Chairman Matt Brown called the meeting to order at 11:10 a.m. 

March 2016 Financial Report

Ms. Lola Oyeyemi, Director Budget, reported that with 50 percent of the fiscal year completed, 
financials are on track with budgetary expectations and targeted performance metrics. Total 
operating revenues are at $301.4 million or 50.6 percent of budget, operating expenses at 
$234.6 million or 44 percent of budget and capital disbursements at $253.6 million or 50 percent 
of budget in the respective categories.

As part of the financial highlights, Ms. Oyeyemi stated that staff completed the FY 2016 
Inter-Municipal Agreement (IMA) with $728K net refund to the Authority. She explained that the 
net refund was separate from the approximately $10 million that was offered as a credit to 
wholesale customers’ bill in FY 2016, which was mainly due to the performance of the digesters. 
She informed the Committee of the FY 2017 preliminary year-end projections and FY 2019 
Budget Kickoff anticipated in May.

Mr. Matt Brown, Board Chairman, inquired as to why capital labor is trending lower at just 37
percent of budget. Ms. Oyeyemi responded that most of the significant capital projects related to 
the digester were completed in FY 2016, therefore, we are seeing a downward trend in capital 
labor costs. She also explained that an uptick is anticipated during the latter part of the year for 

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

17



the Automated Meter Reading (AMR) replacement program and the Customer Information 
System (eCIS) project.

Chairman Brown inquired why there was no expenditure to date for the Cash Financed Capital 
Improvement (CFCI). Ms. Oyeyemi and Mr. George Hawkins, CEO & General Manager, 
explained that the CFCI serves a dual purpose of tighter budgeting with the flexibility of 
reprogramming funds for emergency purposes within the authorized budget, and support of
PAYGO financing for the capital improvement program (CIP). 

Mr. Brown also questioned why the Clean Rivers Impervious Area Charge (CRIAC) receipts are 
slightly higher as compared to budget. Mr. Syed Khalil, Director of Rates and Revenue, explained 
that the higher receipts to date for residential, commercial and multi-family customers are on 
account of slightly higher Clean Rivers Impervious Area Charge (CRIAC). He added that the 
higher receipts are also partly due to updated impervious area flyover data, which was 
incorporated in the eCIS system in August 2016. He further stated that the full impact of the flyover 
will not be known until the end the year. Chairman Brown asked that a detailed follow-up 
presentation on the Impervious Area Charge (IAC) be prepared for the appropriate committee’s 
review.

Mr. Robert Hunt, Chief Financial Officer (Acting), provided an overview of the cash balances and 
investments noting that the operating reserve balance of $149.1 million was well above the 
targeted reserve level of $125.5 million.

Update on Letter of Credit for Series 2014 B1 & B2 Bonds

Mr. Hunt provided an overview of the 2014 B1 and B2 bonds in the amount of $100 million which 
were issued in a variable rate mode and required a letter of credit issued by TD Bank to provide 
the liquidity for the bonds if needed. He noted that the bonds mature each week and at maturity 
if not re-sold to other investors, DC Water would need to pay the investors $100 million. The 
current letter of credit was for three years and expires July 23, 2017.

Mr. Christopher Lover, Managing Director, Public Financial Management (PFM) and DC Water’s 
financial advisor, made a presentation to the Committee on the available options and benefits of 
renewal versus replacement of the letter of credit with TD Bank. He outlined management’s
recommendation that DC Water renew the current letter of credit with TD Bank at a very attractive 
rate of 28 basis points (fee of approximately $280K annually).

Action Item

The Committee agreed to recommend the letter of credit renewal to the Board for approval.

Adjournment 

Hearing no further business, Chairman Brown adjourned the meeting at 11:34 a.m.

Follow-up Items  

1. Prepare more in depth review of the Impervious Area Charge (IAC) to the DC Retail 
Water & Sewer Rates Committee (Chairman Brown).

DC Water Board of Directors - V.  Committee Reports

18



CEO and GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
George S. Hawkins    –   May 2017        

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

19



Table of Contents 
Message from the CEO/GM ................................................................................................................. I 

Organizational Performance Dashboard .............................................................................................. i 

Financial Highlights ............................................................................................................................ 1 

Financial Performance Summary .............................................................................................................................. 1 

Revenues and Operating Expenses ........................................................................................................................... 2 

Capital Spending ........................................................................................................................................................ 2 

Operating Cash and Receivables ............................................................................................................................... 3 

Investment Earnings .................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Investment Yield........................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Customer Care and Operations Highlights ........................................................................................... 5 

Customer Service ...................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Fire Hydrants ............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

Permit Processing ...................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Low Income Assistance Program......................................................................................................... 8 

SPLASH Program ........................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Customer Assistance Program(CAP) ......................................................................................................................... 8 

Operational Highlights ....................................................................................................................... 9 

Drinking Water Quality.............................................................................................................................................. 9 

Waste Water Treatment ......................................................................................................................................... 10 

Water Distribution Operations................................................................................................................................ 11 

Water Balance ......................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Sewer System Operations ....................................................................................................................................... 12 

Combined Sewer System ......................................................................................................................................... 12 

Human Resources ................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Electricity Usage Summary ...................................................................................................................................... 14 

Electricity Usage by Service Area ............................................................................................................................ 14 

Safety ...................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

Vendor Payments .................................................................................................................................................... 15 

Interpretation of Charts .................................................................................................................... A 

Color Key 

Red   Did not meet Target 
Yellow   Missed Target but within acceptable range 
Green   Met/Exceeded Target 
Gray   Budget/Target Value 
<transparent>  Green/Yellow/Red based on comparison 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

20



 

I 

 

Message from the CEO/GM 

 

May GM Report 
 
Greetings to the Board.  Spring seems to have jumped directly to summer just in the last week – but we 
are hopeful that rains will continue to keep everything growing and many May flowers on the way. 
 
Board Agenda 
After conversations with Chair Matt Brown, we are unveiling at the May Board meeting a new element 
of the Board Agenda – which is a short 10-15 minute informational presentation on an issue that is of 
interest to the entire Board.  Similar to most Boards, the work of the Board is done within the 
Committees, with recommendations for action items coming from the Committees to the Board.  This 
process ensures that all issues have been reviewed in detail in the Committee structure before an action 
is considered by the full Board.  Board meetings, therefore, are devoted to reports from the 
Committees, and relatively expeditious reviews of action items that have already been vetted.  Although 
there is often discussion before the Board takes action, by design the in-depth analysis and discussion is 
focused at the Committee level.  There are two practical outcomes of this process.   The first is that as 
the enterprise has become disciplined about doing the work at the Committee level, the Board meetings 
have become much shorter in duration.  (This is a merciful change from when I was a Board member in 
2007-9, when Board meetings often went on for 2 and sometimes 3 or 4 hours).  The second, though, is 
that some issues that are of general interest to the Board have been discussed at a Committee, but not 
at the Board meeting itself. 
 
Chairman Brown suggested that we could build on both these attributes by considering for the agenda 
each month a topic of general interest to the Board for an informational presentation – not for action – 
so that every Board member could hear more about a relevant topic.  These presentations would be 
separate from the GM’s report and likely delivered by key DC Water staff – which has the benefit of 
exposing the Board to a wider range of the senior management staff of the enterprise.  The thought is 
that this addition to the Agenda would be optional at each meeting, and might be deferred if the pre-
existing agenda items are likely to engender a longer meeting.  Topics that are likely to be included in 
this segment are: general Blue Drop update (this month, see below!); review of high likelihood/high 
consequence of sewer failure (slated for June); general goods and services or capital procurement 
procedures or the DC Water Works workforce program. 
 
I appreciate Chairman Brown’s innovative idea and am fully behind the proposal.  We look forward to 
providing these updates – and the follow-up discussions that are likely in the Committees – in the 
months ahead. 
 
Blue Drop and ART 
DC Water staff has updated the Board at the last two Board retreats on three potential avenues for 
increasing non-ratepayer revenue: 1) expanded use of existing unused treatment capacity; 2) 
Intellectual property – both licensing and potentially paired with ongoing service support, developed 
through our Advancing Research and Technology office; and 3) peer-to-peer consulting to other water 
utilities on areas where DC Water has expertise under a business approach called “Blue Drop.”    
 
The first avenue is clearly an opportunity that exists within DC Water’s current structure and is 
associated with renting unused capacity at Blue Plains (and maybe the Washington Aqueduct) to 
potential parties.  Any development in this area will be vetted through the Environmental Quality and 
Operations Committee and may engage the IMA (Intermunicipal Agreement) process that manages 
allocation of costs between all the retail and wholesale customers of Blue Plains.   

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

21



 

II 

 

Message from the CEO/GM 

 

 
The two remaining avenues – IP/Advancing Research and Technology (ART) and Blue Drop (BD) – have 
engendered significant interest by the Board, which at least in my perception, supports the tremendous 
potential for new revenue, but is also keenly concerned about new potential liabilities and that these 
opportunities not “distract” DC Water personnel from their core responsibilities.  A group of Board 
members visited me after the last Retreat to express these sentiments and I pledged a follow-up 
discussion and focus with the Board to elevate our collective awareness of what is and could happen, 
and to gain guidance.  Chairman Brown highlighted that oversight of these two areas of new revenue 
would be overseen by the Governance Committee, and both he and the Chair of that Committee, Ellen 
Boardman, as well as other members of the Board, were expecting relevant presentations and 
discussions early this year.  Our delay in providing these presentations rests with me, which I deeply 
regret.  On the other hand, we are committed to remedying this error by initiating robust engagement in 
the weeks and months ahead. 
 
The plan is for me to present a general update on BD as the first edition of the General Briefing item to 
be added to the Board meeting agenda (see the first point above.)  I summarize the briefing in the next 
paragraph.  We are inviting all interested Board members to the Governance Committee on May 10 at 
9:30, where we will present a more in-depth discussion and update on BD.  The plan is to provide an in-
depth discussion on IP/ART at the Governance Committee meeting in July.  We also initiated last month 
and will continue written updates on BD activity in the GM’s Report each month.  Alan Heymann is the 
president of BD in addition to serving as DC Water’s Chief Marketing Officer. His update on BD is 
included below as well. 
 
For BD, the DC Water Board approved the formation of Blue Drop as an independent affiliate of DC 
Water at the November 3, 2016 Board meeting.  Subsequently, we formed BD as a nonprofit limited 
liability company under the laws of the District of Columbia with DC Water as the only member, and as 
the member, the only entity able to change its corporate structure, modify its business purpose, or allow 
any additional members.  DC Water appointed me as the Member Representative to provide direction 
to the Board of BD, which I also appoint.  We have appointed the Board of BD and have held our first 
meeting, at which point the Board approved Bylaws and a series of personnel and contract items 
associated with establishing BD and getting our first clients in the fold.  Our plan is to make these 
documents available to the DC Water Board on the Board Books portal. 
 
I have appointed four voting members of the Board: Willy Walker (Chair and CEO of Walker & Dunlop, 
past Chair, DC Water), Robert Mallett (CEO, Africare, past Board member DC Water, past City 
Administrator, District of Columbia), David Henderson (Managing Partner, XPV Water Partners, a private 
equity firm that exclusively invests in water technology companies), and Andy Kricun (General Manager 
and Chief Engineer, Camden County Municipal Utilities Authority.)  We are actively vetting a fifth 
member of the Board and hope to add small business perspective and some additional diversity.  We 
also negotiated for BD to take over space that DC Water had already leased and paid for to house its 
now-closed business center on 810 First Street, NE. (This space was sitting empty) BD, at minimal cost, 
has been able to repurpose this space and will be housed there until the lease expires in late 2018. 
 
We will clarify at the Governance Committee meeting the activities that have been undertaken by BD 
and the exciting prospects that are ahead.  We will also clarify that BD is exclusively generating revenue 
from two sources: the marketing of Bloom Soil (our biosolid product) and peer-to-peer consulting 
services.  Importantly, General Counsel Henderson Brown will also outline the legal structure and 
provide guidelines for DC Water’s Board oversight of BD.  In short, there is no limit to the information 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

22



 

III 

 

Message from the CEO/GM 

 

that the Board can and should review – which we will propose be done at every other Governance 
Committee meeting and in every monthly GM Report.  The difference is that the DC Water Board will 
not be in the approval process for business opportunities or contracts that BD is able to generate – 
except in the strategic sense of providing clarity on the business purpose of BD as the business unfolds. 
 
For ART and Intellectual Property, the concern is associated with the potential liability that DC Water 
may shoulder in contracts with other entities, both in the United States and abroad, associated with IP 
we have helped develop, or more directly, with services we offer bundled with that IP.  In general, there 
is both limited liability and limited revenue that stems from licensing IP that is adopted by an 
independent firm and used in their services to a client (the private firm takes the risk, and also receives 
most of the revenue), and more revenue and potential liability with offering our own services in 
connection with the IP (DC Water personnel providing direct design, operations and maintenance advice 
for facilities built based in whole or part on our IP.) 
 
The Board seeks more information on both avenues of revenue generation, but is mostly concerned 
with contracts, particularly abroad, where DC Water personnel are also providing services directly to a 
customer.  I have put any further contracts of this nature on hold until we have reviewed the issues 
further with the Board.  (We have one in place with a US Company that is doing work in China – which 
was discussed briefly at the Retreat and triggered much of the concern.)  We will provide a thorough 
review of issues pertaining to these efforts at the July Governance Committee meeting.  This work is 
firmly housed within DC Water in the ART program, so is fully within the normal oversight powers of the 
Board and its Committees. 
 
Finally, we are hosting a second meeting of the BD Board on Friday, May 5.  There are no actions items 
on the agenda for that day – we are planning a discussion on business planning for BD.  Because we may 
not call the BD Board together again until late Summer or Fall, we thought to invite DC Water Board 
members to visit the BD offices on 801 First Street, NE (our old business center – you will see the bullet 
proof glass that is still up from when we had tellers there) and to meet the BD Board members and staff.  
Once again, I regret this open house has been scheduled before the briefing that we will offer at the 
Governance Committee on May 10 – but felt on balance that this was an opportunity that was timely 
and beneficial to both Boards.  We will be delighted to see you at the BD offices on the Friday after the 
DC Water Board meeting. The open house is scheduled for 2:30 to 4:30 p.m. If you need support with 
transportation or parking, please let me know. 
 
Blue Drop  
 
Blue Drop is wrapping up its first consulting engagement in New Jersey and began a new project last 
month in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. The client is Capital Region Water, a utility similar to DC Water in 
many respects (capital city, water and wastewater, retail and wholesale customers) but much smaller in 
scale. Blue Drop will offer DC Water’s expertise to CRW in communications strategy and customer 
service best practices. CRW is Blue Drop’s third paying consulting client. 
 
For March, Blue Drop invoiced customers for 748 tons of Bloom and delivered truck-sized samples to 
several potential customers, with revenue of more than $2,500 and roughly $25,000 in avoided land 
application costs to DC Water. 
 
Blue Drop is excited to bring on its first two employees, a Director of Operations and a Director of Client 
Services in June. Both are excited to be joining our startup venture and look forward to introducing 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

23



 

IV 

 

Message from the CEO/GM 

 

themselves at a future Board meeting. We will save their introduction for a later date, because as of this 
writing, they had not both given notice to their current employers. 
 
External Affairs 
Website  
Session totals for the period of March 16 through April 15, 2017 

● Total Sessions:     66,082  

● New Sessions:      35,631 (53.92%) 

 
Government Relations 
To coincide with the Congressional recess, we invited key staff from the Senate Appropriations and 
Environment and Public Works committees to visit the Clean Rivers project site at Poplar Point. These 
tours were very well attended and a great opportunity to share our message with important 
stakeholders.  
 
In addition, we worked with NACWA on a tour for House staff at Blue Plains and addressed nearly 30 
staff on our work, mission and priorities. 
 
In honor of Earth Day and to mark the 1 year anniversary since the roll out of Bloom, the government 
affairs team provided Mayor Bowser and the DC Council with packages of Bloom planting material and 
gave an overview on the progress to date in marketing it. 
 
Media Relations 
OEA responded to media inquiries about high water bills, main breaks and the UDC/co-op water 
usage/high water bill issue. 
 
Press Releases 

● March 24: DC Water and Xylem will unveil the world’s first intelligent wastewater pumping 

system 

● March 22: Traffic Advisory - Modified Traffic Closure on Oregon Avenue, NW 

● March 20: Traffic Advisory - Canal Road, NW and Foxhall Road, NW 

● March 20: Spring Cleaning For DC Water Pipes Begins March 20 

Media Coverage  
● Water gushes into Yellow Line tunnel 

(WTOP / March 17, 2017) 
● DC Water And Xylem Celebrate The Installation Of The First Intelligent Wastewater Pumping 

System In North America 

(Water Online / March 24, 2017) 
● D.C. wants to train residents for jobs with Pepco and other utilities 

(Washington Business Journal / April 4, 2017) 

● CH2M-designed DC Water Blue Plains Tunnel named Overall Best of the Best Project for 2016 by 

ENR 

(Military-Technology.net / April 11, 2017) 

Meetings/Presentations/Events 
● DC Water successfully conducted its annual series of formal briefings to District Councilmembers 

to provide important information on ongoing and future construction projects impacting their 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

24

http://wtop.com/dc/2017/03/water-gushes-into-yellow-line-tunnel-expect-metro-delays/
https://www.wateronline.com/doc/dc-water-and-xylem-celebrate-the-installation-of-the-first-intelligent-wastewater-pumping-system-in-north-america-0001
https://www.wateronline.com/doc/dc-water-and-xylem-celebrate-the-installation-of-the-first-intelligent-wastewater-pumping-system-in-north-america-0001
http://www.bizjournals.com/washington/news/2017/04/03/d-c-wants-to-train-residents-for-jobs-with-pepco.html
http://www.military-technologies.net/2017/04/11/ch2m-designed-dc-water-blue-plains-tunnel-named-overall-best-of-the-best-project-for-2016-by-engineering-news-record/
http://www.military-technologies.net/2017/04/11/ch2m-designed-dc-water-blue-plains-tunnel-named-overall-best-of-the-best-project-for-2016-by-engineering-news-record/


 

V 

 

Message from the CEO/GM 

 

respective wards. DC Water conducted its seventh briefing to Ward 6 Councilmember Charles 

Allen and members of his key staff. 

● In support of its Saint Elizabeths Water Storage Tower and Transmission Mains project, DC 

Water is embarking on a very aggressive outreach campaign to educate the affected 

communities across Ward 8 about the project’s short-term impacts and long-term benefits, 

mainly increased water pressure in areas, where needed. As part of this outreach campaign, DC 

Water attended the Anacostia Business Improvement District’s  Annual Stakeholders Meeting to 

provide a detailed presentation on the project.  

● In support of its Small Diameter Water Main Replacement Project occurring on Columbia Road, 

NW, and Irving, Harvard, Girard, Fairmont and Clifton Streets, NW, DC Water attended a special 

meeting of ANC 1A’s Transportation Committee to discuss the transportation and parking 

impacts presented by this project in conjunction with other area projects. As a possible 

mitigation to the anticipated local parking impact, ANC 1A has drafted a resolution to make an 

appeal to DC USA for the availability of alternative parking within the DC USA facility during 

construction of DC Water’s project. DC Water is coordinating with ANC 1A and Executive Office 

of the Mayor on the scheduling of a conference call or in-person meeting with DC USA to 

officially request the alternative parking for local area residents.    

● At the request of the Eastland Gardens Civic Association, DC Water attended its monthly 

meeting to provide a general discussion on the following topics: Recent spikes in billing; 

breakdown of billing charges; and discussion on any existing lead services serving homes 

throughout the local area. Following this successful discussion, DC Water Customer Service has 

received an extensive list of individual billing concerns, all of which have been researched and 

customers contacted with our findings. 

● In celebration of this year’s Water Week in Washington, DC, Wendy joined the National 

Association of Clean Water Agencies and an array of water sector association partners from 

around the country, along with members of Congress and EPA officials for the “Rally of Water” 

at Upper Senate Park. 

● As an innovative educational outreach tool, DC Water conducted a Facebook Live Environmental 

Lesson Brookland Middle School. Approximately 63 students from 6th grade participated in a 

hands-on, interactive lesson on how wastewater is cleaned. 

● DC Water provided a briefing on its Georgetown Combined Sewer Rehabilitation Project to 

Councilmember Jack Evans. Among a number of hot button topics related to this project, the 

following were covered: Schedule for manhole access; prescribed working hours in front of Café 

Milano, if manhole access is needed; special care of the bricks that will be temporarily removed 

from the 3300 block of O Street NW during the sewer repair/excavation. 

● In support of its Spring Valley Water Main Upgrade Project, DC Water has been providing 

extensive outreach to American University throughout recent weeks to ensure proper 

coordination of this project with the University’s own major renovation project. As part of these 

coordination efforts, DC Water hosted the University team here at Blue Plains for the third in a 

series of meetings to discuss construction activities under our project. 

● DC Water has also been providing extensive outreach to community stakeholders in preparation 

for construction of its Northeast Boundary Tunnel Project.  As part of these ongoing outreach 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

25



 

VI 

 

Message from the CEO/GM 

 

efforts, DC Water hosted an informal coffee discussion at Big Bear Café in the Bloomingdale 

neighborhood with ANCs 5C, 5D and 5E and local civic associations to discuss topics such as pre-

construction surveys. 

● DC Water attended the April monthly meeting of ANC 3D to provide updates on its Spring Valley 

Water Main Upgrade Project, and also to present its Small Diameter Water Main Replacement 

Project which will be taking place along Potomac Avenue, NW. 

● DC Water conducted the second of its Facebook Live Environmental Lessons. 

● DC Water attended the April monthly meeting of ANC 1B to present its Small Diameter Water 

Main Replacement Project occurring on Columbia Road, NW, and Irving, Harvard, Girard, 

Fairmont and Clifton Streets, NW. 

● DC Water attended a meeting with ANC 3G to discuss its Oregon Avenue Sewer Rehabilitation 

Project. More specifically, there was conversation about ways in which traffic signage can be 

improved throughout the remainder of the work. 

● DC Water provided giveaways during the First Baptist Church of Deanwood’s 2017 Health Fair 

Expo. 

● Each year, DC Water participates in a wide number of events sponsored by region wide agencies 

and organizations in celebration of Earth Month. These events are effective in not only showing 

DC Water’s support for these various cleanup efforts along the Potomac and Anacostia 

riversheds, but also in conveying the fact that DC Water and its Ambassador, Wendy, are major 

stewards of the environment as well. In light of this, Wendy stopped by the Alice Ferguson 

Foundation’s Cleanup event at Noyes Park to greet the cleanup crew and even pick up a broom, 

wheelbarrow and shovel to assist in these efforts! 

● In showing its ongoing support to 11th Street Bridge Park, DC Water attended this organization’s 

3rd Annual Anacostia River Festival, providing its Quench Buggy and water bottles, among other 

giveaways and activities. 

● DC Water attended the April monthly meeting of ANC 1A as a follow up to its presentation 

during the March meeting of the ANC’s Transportation Committee. During this meeting, DC 

Water provided a detailed schedule of work at each street within the project area, to the ANC’s 

appreciation, satisfaction, and high praise! 

● DC Water attended the April monthly meeting of ANC 2B to present its Small Diameter Water 

Main Replacement Project occurring along 18th Street, NW. 

● DC Water has participated in a series of meetings with the Georgetown Business Improvement 

District and members of ANC 2E to discuss its Georgetown Combined Sewer Rehabilitation 

Project. During the 4/13 meeting, updates on the following topics were provided: Schedule for 

manhole access; prescribed working hours in front of Café Milano, if manhole access is needed; 

special care of the bricks that will be temporarily removed from the 3300 block of O Street NW 

during the sewer repair/excavation. 

 
 
Customer Newsletter 
The April customer newsletter was the consent decree-mandated Clean Rivers Project News with 
articles about the ENR “Best of the Best” Award, the downspout disconnection program, Nannie’s 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

26



 

VII 

 

Message from the CEO/GM 

 

completion and an article on the national GI certification graduates. It also included the mandated FAQ 
page. 
 
Tours 

● 21 students from the McClean School 

● 10 citizens from Resolve, Inc. 

● 25 students from Georgetown Visitation Prep 

● 15 students from George Washington School of Public Health 

● 12 property managers from the Lenkin Company 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

27



 

VIII 

 

Message from the CEO/GM 

 

Social Media 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Social Media 
 
 
 
 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

28



ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD (MARCH, 2017)

       Financial Highlights 

Net Operating Cash

Actual 72525
Target 41328

( $ tho )  

Operating Revenues

Actual 301
Target 298

( $ mil )  

Operating Expenses

Actual 235
Target 268

( $ mil )  

Capital Disbursements

Actual 254
Target 254

( $ mil )

Operating Cash Balance

Actual 156
Target 126

( $ mil )  

Delinquent Account Receivables

Actual 2
Target 3

( % )  

Core Investments Yield

Actual 1.2
Target 1.26

( % )  

Short Term Investment Yield

Actual 0.85
Target 0.71

( % )

       Customer Care and Operations Highlights 

Call Center Performance

Mar

87
85 (% of calls rec)  

Command Center Performance

Mar

87
85 (% of calls rec)  

First Call Resolution 

Mar

83
75 (% of calls rec)  

Emergency Response Time

Mar

91
90 (% of calls rec)

Fire Hydrants out of Service

Mar

42
96 ( count )  

Fire Hydrant Insps. and Maint.

17
( count )  

Fire Hydrants Replaced

Mar

43
250 ( YTD count )  

Permit Processing within SLA

69
( % )

       Low Income Assistance Program 

Splash Contributions

Actual 54
Target 40

( $ tho )  

Customer Assistance Program

Previous 72
Current 298

( $ tho )

       Operational Highlights 

Lead Concentration 

0

25
50

75
( ppb )

 

Total Coliform Rule 

0

2
4 6

8

( % )

 

Biosolids Production

441
( wet tons )  

Total Nitrogen 

0

2
4 6

8

( lbs /yr mil )

Plant Effluent Flow 

0

250
500

750
( ga l mil )

 

Excess Flow 

10
( gal mil )  

Water Main Leaks

16
( count )  

Water Valve Leaks

1
( count )

Non-Revenue Water 

Sold 8
Purchased 11

( CCF mil )  

Sewer Main Backups

10
( count )  

Sewer Lateral Backups

165
( count )  

Dry Weather CSO

0
( events )

Recruitment Activity

Filled 21
Open 103

( count )  

Electricity Usage

17326
(MWh)  

Employee Lost Time Accidents

7
( count )  

Vendor Payments

Actual 98
Target 97

( % )

Page i

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

29



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

REVENUE , EXPENDITURE, CAPITAL DISBURSEMENT

 

595

301

536

235

507

254

1%

12%

3%

0

100

200

300

400

A
m

ou
nt

 (
 M

ill
io

ns
 $

)

Revenues Expenditures Capital Disbursements

0%

10%

20%

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
(%

)

(Cumulative Revenue, Expenditure & Capital Disbursements compared to Budget)
Budget FY-2017 (in millions) - Revised
Actual YTD Totals FY-2017 (in millions)
Variance % : favorable / (unfavorable)

Year to Date Analysis

50%
52%

44%
42%

51%
50%

50%
50%

Capital Disbursements

Expenditures

Revenues

Budget Period Elapsed

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 110%

FY-2016 Ratio (%) FY-2017 Ratio (%)

NET OPERATING CASH

 

12,525
16,320

(5)

16,509

26,663

984

25,543

11,047

(2,386)

24,430

12,794

1,097

6,888

13,776

20,664

27,552

34,440

41,328

25,543

36,590
34,204

58,634

71,428 72,525

(10,000)

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

A
m

ou
nt

(i
n 

00
0'

s 
$)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Net cash to date for March was above budget by $31 Million

(Monthly and YTD Net Operating Cash Provided / Used compared to Budget)

Monthly Net Cash Provided/Used (in 000's)
YTD Cumulative Net Cash FY-2017 (in 000's)
YTD Budget FY-2017 (in 000's)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 1

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

30



REVENUES AND OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING REVENUES
 

 

45.8 57.4
37.3

52.9
68.6

37.3
60.5 51 39.1

58.9 53 39

49.6

99.2

148.9

198.5

248.1

297.7

60.5

111.4

150.5

209.4

262.4

301.4

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

A
m

ou
nt

 (
M

ill
io

ns
 $

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Revenue to date for March was above Budget by $4 Million

Monthly & Cumulative Revenue compared to YTD Budget

 

Actual Monthly Revenue
YTD Cumulative Revenue FY-2017
YTD Cumulative Budget FY-2017

OPERATING EXPENSES

 

38.1 37.2 39.4 40.2 38.3

70.2

39 37.3 43.2 41.3 35.6 38.2

44.7

89.4

134.1

178.8

223.5

268.2

39

76.3

119.5

160.8

196.4

234.6

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

A
m

ou
nt

 (
M

ill
io

ns
 $

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Expenditure to date for March was below budget by $34 Million

Monthly & Cumulative Expenditure compared to YTD Budget

 

Actual Monthly Expenses
YTD Cumulative Expenditure FY-2017
YTD Cumulative Budget FY-2017

CAPITAL SPENDING

CAPITAL DISBURSEMENTS

 

58.4
34.8

47.7
36.4

56.7
37.6 38.23

54.16
34.38 39.09 37.6

50.12

41.34

82.68

126.75

168.09

209.43

253.5

38.23

92.39

126.77

165.86

203.45

253.57

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

A
m

ou
nt

 (
M

ill
io

ns
 $

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Disbursements to date for March was on target with budgetDisbursements to date for March was on target with budget

Monthly & Cumulative Disbursements compared to YTD Budget
Actual Monthly Disbursements
YTD Cumulative Disbursements FY-2017
YTD Cumulative Budget FY-2017

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 2

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

31



OPERATING CASH AND RECEIVABLES

OPERATING CASH BALANCE

 

159 158 159 159 158 158 160
154 152 152 155 156

0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175

A
m

ou
nt

 (
M

ill
io

ns
 $

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Cash Balance for March was above target by $ 30 millionCash Balance for March was above target by $ 30 million

Average Daily Cash Balance compared to Operating Reserve Target

Actual Cash Balance FY-2017
Operating Reserve Target - (126 Million)

DELINQUENT ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES

 

1.59% 1.54%
1.74% 1.69% 1.61% 1.62% 1.63% 1.65% 1.72% 1.76%

1.88%
1.75%

7.01 6.93
7.91 7.8 7.5 7.68 7.76 7.87 8.18 8.51 9.05 8.46

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

R
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 to
 R

ev
en

ue
R

at
io

 (
%

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

4

8

12

D
el

in
qu

en
cy

(M
ill

io
ns

 $
)

March Receivables to Revenue Ratio 1.75%, Delinquency $8.46 MillionMarch Receivables to Revenue Ratio 1.75%, Delinquency $8.46 Million

Delinquency & Receivables to Revenue Ratio compared to Target

Receivables to Revenue Ratio
Delinquencies FY-2017 (in millions)
Target: Receivables to Revenue Ratio (3%)

INVESTMENT EARNINGS

INVESTMENT CASH EARNINGS

 

98.1
140.8

121.6 109.6
82.2 52.3

107.2 104.9

198.8
162.5

60.8

158.5

152.3

304.6

456.9

609.2

761.5

913.8

107.2

212.1

410.9

573.4

634.2

792.7

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

A
m

ou
nt

 (
in

 0
00

's
 $

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Earnings to date for March were below Projected Budget by $121,000Earnings to date for March were below Projected Budget by $121,000

Monthly & Cumulative Earnings compared to YTD Budget

Monthly Earnings (in 000's)
YTD Cumulative Earnings FY-2017 (in 000's)
YTD Cumulative Earnings Budget FY-2017 (in 000's)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 3

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

32



INVESTMENT YIELD

CORE INVESTMENTS YIELD

 

0.
75

1.
13

0.
86

1.
13

0.
6

1.
11

0.
67

1.
12

0.
79

1.
13

0.
78

1.
16

0.
85

1.
16

1.
1

1.
13 1.

16 1.
17

1.
15 1.

21

1.
17 1.

23 1.
26

1.
2

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

In
ve

st
m

en
t Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Yield for March was lower than the treasury index by 0.06%
 

Monthly Yield compared to Merrill Lynch Benchmark

Actual Monthly Yield (%)
Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year Treasury Index - Book Value (%)

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT YIELD

 

0.
15

0.
65

0.
2

0.
64

0.
23

0.
71

0.
22

0.
66

0.
25

0.
62

0.
17

0.
74

0.
25

0.
66

0.
37

0.
64

0.
43

0.
62

0.
47

0.
66

0.
49 0.
51

0.
71

0.
85

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

Sh
or

t T
er

m
 Y

ie
ld

 (
%

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Short Term Yield for March was higher than the Merill Lynch yield by 0.14%
 

Short Term Yield compared to Merrill Lynch Benchmark

Actual Monthly Yield (%)
Merrill Lynch 3-Month Treasury Index - Book Value (%)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 4

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

33



CUSTOMER SERVICE

CALL CENTER PERFORMANCE

 

84%
89% 86% 83%

88%
83%

71% 71%

88% 88% 91% 87%

17.18
15.84

17.08
15.73

18.59
16.32 16.29 15.52 16.3

15.09
16.2

19.18

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

Pe
rc

en
t o

f 
C

al
ls

 A
ns

w
er

ed

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

0

10

20

N
um

be
r 

of
C

al
ls

 R
ec

ei
ve

d
(i

n 
00

0'
s)

Performance for March was above target by 2%

Calls Answered within 40 Seconds compared to Target

 

Call Center: Calls answered (%)
No of Calls - Call Center (in 000's)
Target -Call Center (85%)

COMMAND CENTER PERFORMANCE

 

93% 94%
89% 90% 90%

94% 92% 94% 93%

82%
86% 87%

3.3
5 4.2 3.5 3.8 3.1 3.4 3.2 4.1 4.7

3.6 4.4

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

Pe
rc

en
t o

f 
C

al
ls

 A
ns

w
er

ed

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

0

10

20

N
um

be
r 

of
C

al
ls

 R
ec

ei
ve

d
(i

n 
00

0'
s)

Performance for March was above target by 2%

Calls Answered within 40 Seconds compared to Target

 

Command Center: Calls answered (%)
No of Calls - Command Center (in 000's)
Target -Command Center (85%)

FIRST CALL RESOLUTION (FCR)

 

83%
85% 85% 85%

82%
85%

81%
83% 84% 84% 83% 83%

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

Pe
rc

en
t o

f 
FC

R
 C

al
ls

 R
es

ol
ve

d

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Performance for March was above target by 8%

Calls resolved on first contact compared to Target

 

FCR (%)
FCR Target (75%)

EMERGENCY RESPONSE TIME

 

100%
94% 93% 94%

100%
95%

100%
94%

100% 100% 100%
91%

16 16 15
18

9

19 17 18

13

18 16

11

0%

50%

100%

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

R
es

po
ns

e
w

ith
in

 4
5 

M
in

ut
es

 (
%

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

0

10

20

T
ot

al
 C

al
ls

D
is

pa
tc

he
d

Performance for March was above target by 1%

Calls responded to within 45 Minutes compared to Target

 

Response (%) within Target
Total Emergency Calls Dispatched
Response Target (90%)

CUSTOMER CARE AND OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHTS

Page 5

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

34



FIRE HYDRANTS

FIRE HYDRANTS OUT OF SERVICE (OOS)

 

32

23

29

30

34

46

28

30

32

26

36

24

34

20

41

16

40

15

44

18

41

15

42

6

0

20

40

60

80

100

H
yd

ra
nt

s
O

ut
 o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Total Hydrants Out of Service against Target

 

Out of Service Fire Hydrants (Defective OOS Hydrants)
In-Operational - OOS Due to Inaccessibility or Temporary
Work
Out of Service Hydrants Target (96)

Fire Hydrant Inspections and Maintenance

 

435

597
531

610

1,346

1,032

1,364

1,149

1,230

1,582

1,156

17

0

250

500

750

1,000

1,250

1,500

1,750

H
yd

ra
nt

 I
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Total Hydrant Inspection and Maintenance Work Orders Completed per Month

 

Hydrant Inspections and Maintenance

FIRE HYDRANT REPLACEMENTS

 

19

17

12

6

18

11

8

4 4

6 6

15

0

5

10

15

20

Fi
re

 H
yd

ra
nt

s
R

ep
la

ce
d

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Total replacements as of March were 43 against annual projections of 250

Total Hydrants Replaced per Month

 

Hydrants Replaced
Annual Replacement Target (250)

CUSTOMER CARE AND OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHTS

Page 6

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

35



PERMIT PROCESSING

TOTAL APPLICATIONS PROCESSED WITHIN SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT (SLA)

 

174
160

202

162

222

194
183

156

248

209 205

168 177

150

180

140

167

125

168

135

192

144

250

173

92%

80%
87% 85% 84% 82% 85%

78% 75%
80%

75%
69%

0

100

200

300

N
o 

of
 P

er
m

its
 P

ro
ce

ss
ed

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

50%

75%

100%

%
 P

ro
ce

ss
ed

W
ith

in
 S

L
A

Permits not processed within SLA in March were 31% Note that different SLA's range from 7 days to 45 days

 
SLA Examples: Raze Permit - 14days, Sheeting and Shoring - 14 days, Preliminary Plan Review - 45 days

Total No of Applications Processed
Total No of Applications Processed within SLA
Percent (%) Processed within SLA

CUSTOMER CARE AND OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHTS

Page 7

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

36



SPLASH PROGRAM

SPLASH CONTRIBUTIONS

 

8 8 8 8 10
7 9 9 8

12
8 87

13

20

27

33

40

9

17

26

37

45

54

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A
m

ou
nt

 (
in

 0
00

's
 $

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Total SPLASH Contributions to date for March were above target by $ 14,000

Monthly and Cumulative Contributions compared to YTD Target

 

Monthly Contributions (in 000's)
YTD Cumulative Contributions FY-2017 (in 000's)
Projected YTD Target FY-2017 (in 000's)

CUSTOMER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (CAP)

CUSTOMER ASSISTANCE PROVIDED

 

171

84

162

84

123

88

148

87

133

96

115

99

51
44

1

45
32

103

53

168

61

230

72

298

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

A
m

ou
nt

 (
in

 0
00

's
 $

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly Assistance Provided compared to corresponding Previous Year Periods

 

Actual Monthly Amount - Previous Year (in 000's)
Actual Monthly Amount - Current Year (in 000's)

LOW INCOME ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Page 8

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

37



DRINKING WATER QUALITY

LEAD AND COPPER RULE (LCR) COMPLIANCE

 

2

33

15 15

0

5

10

15

20

90
th

 P
er

ce
nt

ile
 L

ea
d 

R
es

ul
ts

 (
pp

b)

Jan-Jun Jul-Dec

Jan-Jun 2017 results to date

Semi-Annual LCR Monitoring Results

 

2016 LCR Results
2017 LCR Results
Action Level : 15 parts per billion (ppb)

TOTAL COLIFORM RULE (TCR)

 

0 0

0.4

1.2

0.4 0.4

0

0.8

1.9

0.4

1.2

0

5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

0

1

2

3

4

5

T
C

R
 %

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

NO Coliform Positives were recorded in March

Total Coliform Positives compared to EPA Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL)

 

TCR Level
EPA Maximum Contaminant Level (5%)

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 9

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

38



WASTEWATER TREATMENT

BIOSOLIDS PRODUCTION

 

423

445

486

409

449

420
432

450

384

450

422
441

0

100

200

300

400

500

B
io

so
lid

s 
(w

et
 to

ns
 p

er
 d

ay
)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Biosolids Average Daily Production for March was 441 wet tons per day

Average Daily Biosolids Production

 

Average Daily Biosolids Hauled

TOTAL NITROGEN

 

 

2.39 2.48 2.46 2.48 2.52 2.55 2.57 2.58 2.59 2.66 2.61 2.64

0

5

10

N
itr

og
en

 L
ev

el
(i

n 
m

ill
io

n 
po

un
ds

 p
er

 y
ea

r)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Nitrogen level for March was below permit by 1.7 million lbs/yr

Total Nitrogen compared to New Permit Levels

 

Nitrogen Annually Load (lbs/yr)
New Permit Limit - 4.38 Million (lbs/yr)

PLANT INFLUENT FLOW

 

 

279

316

279
273

259
252

241

227

246

260

243

271

200

225

250

275

300

325

350

375

400

In
fl

ue
nt

 F
lo

w
 (

M
G

D
)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

In March, Effluent flow was below design by 99 MGD

Influent Flow compared to Plant Design Average Limit

 

Effluent Flow
Design Average (370 mgd)

EXCESS FLOW

 

 

7

40

0

5 5 4

0 0

18

20

0

10

7

40

0

5 5 4

0 0

18

20

0

10

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

E
xc

es
s 

Fl
ow

 (
M

G
)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Excess flow events was recorded at 10 MG in March 2017
 

Excess Flow

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 10

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

39



WATER DISTRIBUTION OPERATIONS

WATER MAIN WORK ORDERS

 

10
14

11
9

16

28

14

35

16

31

12

24

19

38

29

62

21

80

19

41

17

24

14

16

18
8

21
33 28 22

38
50

79

41

19 20

0

25

50

75

100

125

150

W
or

k 
O

rd
er

s 
R

ep
or

te
d

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

0

100

W
or

k 
O

rd
er

s
R

ep
ai

re
d

There were 16 Water Main Work Orders reported in March
 

Pending Main Work Orders
Water Main Work Orders Reported
Water Main Work Orders Repaired

WATER VALVE LEAKS

 

21

4

23

2

25

3

25

1

25

0

28

2

27

4

26

1

29

4

34

6

35

2

35

1

5

0
1

2

0 0

4

2

0
1

3

1

0

10

20

30

40

50

L
ea

ks
 R

ep
or

te
d

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

0

5

10

L
ea

ks
R

ep
ai

re
d

1 leak was resolved in March
 

Pending Valve Leaks Valve Leaks Reported
Valve Leaks Repaired

WATER BALANCE

NON-REVENUE WATER

 

12.12

8.56

11.02

8.08

8.749.03
8.62

7.97 7.84

1

3

5

7

9

11

13

W
at

er
 (

 in
 m

ill
io

n 
cc

f)

Quarter1 Quarter2 Quarter3 Quarter4

5

10

IL
I 

In
de

x

In the 2nd quarter 8.1 out of 11 million cubic feet of water was sold

Volume of Water Purchased and Sold per Quarter

 

FY-2017: Water Purchased
FY-2017: Water Sold
FY-2016: Infrastructure Leakage Index
FY-2017: Infrastructure Leakage Index

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 11

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

40



SEWER SYSTEM OPERATIONS

SEWER MAIN BACKUPS

 

0

8

0

7

0

11

0

6

0

10

0

5

0

8

0

4

0

9

0

9

0

7

0

10

8 7

11

6

10

5
8

4

9 9
7

10

0

5

10

15

B
ac

ku
ps

 R
ep

or
te

d

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

0

10

20

B
ac

ku
ps

R
es

ol
ve

d

No pending main backups reported

Sewer Mains Backed Up and Relieved per Month

 

Pending Main Backups Main Backups Reported
Main Backups Resolved

SEWER LATERAL BACKUPS

 

0

240

0

216

0

205

0

173

0

187

0

220

0

196

0

168

0

179

0

217

0

153

0

165

240
216 205

173 187
220

196
168 179

217

153 165

0

100

200

300

B
ac

ku
ps

 R
ep

or
te

d

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

0

250

B
ac

ku
ps

R
es

ol
ve

d

No pending lateral backups reported

Sewer Laterals Backed Up and Relieved per Month

 

Pending Lateral Backups Lateral Backups Reported
Lateral Backups Resolved

COMBINED SEWER SYSTEM

DRY WEATHER CSO EVENTS

 

0 0 0 0 0

1

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

1

2

3

C
SO

 E
ve

nt
s

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

0

1

C
SO

V
ol

um
e 

(M
G

)

No dry weather Combined Sewer Overflow event was recorded in March 2017

Combined Sewer Overflow Volume and No of Events per Month

 

Number of CSO Events
Overflow Volume (MG)

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 12

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

41



HUMAN RESOURCES

RECRUITMENT ACTIVITY

 

117

24

7
4

130 130

16 14

1

131 131

21
16

12

124

96

19

9
2

116
120

24
18

0

126

110

14
21

0

103

0

25

50

75

100

125

150

N
o 

of
 P

os
iti

on
s

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

In March we began the month with 110 positions, received 14 new positions, filled 21, 0 cancellations and ended the month with 103 positions

 

 

FY-2017:Rolled Over Open Positions
FY-2017:New Positions Added
FY-2017:Positions Filled
FY-2017:Positions Canceled
FY-2017:Net Remaining Open Positions

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 13

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

42



ENERGY

ELECTRICITY USAGE SUMMARY

 

17,453

14,579

18,705
17,264

15,656
17,222

15,439 15,659 15,707 15,136
16,608

17,326

0

2,500

5,000

7,500

10,000

12,500

15,000

17,500

20,000

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
(i

n 
M

W
h)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Electricity Consumption in March was 17,326 MWh

Total Consumption (MWh)

ELECTRICITY USAGE BY SERVICE AREA

 

14,656

11,968

15,938

14,636

13,340

14,674

12,752
13,435 13,502

12,872

14,439
15,161

1,480 1,396 1,443 1,370 1,512 1,663 1,749 1,362 1,343 1,347 1,290 1,277

1,317 1,215 1,324 1,258 803 884 938 862 863 917 880 888
0

2,500

5,000

7,500

10,000

12,500

15,000

17,500

C
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
(i

n 
M

W
h)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Wastewater treatment had the highest electricity consumption in March at 15,161 MWh

.

Sewer Pumping Water Pumping Waste Water Treatment

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 14

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

43



SAFETY

EMPLOYEE LOST TIME INCIDENCE RATE

 

3.8

5.5 3.9

3.7

5.4

2.3 6.8
4.8

3.8
3.3

10 10

19

10
14 14 13

910
7

0

5

10

L
os

t T
im

e
In

ci
de

nc
e 

R
at

e

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

0

10

20

L
os

t T
im

e
A

cc
id

en
ts

In 2nd quarter, 7 lost time accidents were reported
 

FY-2015: LT Incidence Rate
FY-2016: LT Incidence Rate
FY-2017: LT Incidence Rate
FY-2015: No of LT Accidents
FY-2016: No of LT Accidents
FY-2017: No of LT Accidents
Target/National: LT Incidence Rate

CONTRACTOR LOST TIME INCIDENCE RATE

 

0

0.6 0.3
0.7

0.7

0.8

0.3

1.6

0 0

0
2

1 0
2 2

5

01
2

0

1

2

L
os

t T
im

e
In

ci
de

nc
e 

R
at

e

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

0

5

10

L
os

t T
im

e
A

cc
id

en
ts

In 2nd quarter, 2 lost time accidents were reported
 

FY-2015: LT Incidence Rate
FY-2016: LT Incidence Rate
FY-2017: LT Incidence Rate
FY-2015: No of LT Accidents
FY-2016: No of LT Accidents
FY-2017: No of LT Accidents

VENDOR PAYMENTS

VENDOR PAYMENT PERFORMANCE

 

98% 98% 98% 97% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98%

98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98%

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

M
on

th
ly

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 (
%

)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

0%

50%

100%

150%

200%

Y
T

D
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 (

%
)

Monthly performance for March was above Budget by 1%

Percentage of Invoices Paid within 30 days

 

Monthly Performance (%)
YTD Performance (%)
Monthly Target - (97%)

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Page 15

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

44



   

Dynamic Color Coding Legend  
 
* ** 
Red -      when the actual is lower than 3% of budget or target  
Yellow -  when the actual is within 3% of budget or target 
Green -   when the actual is equal to or higher than budget or target 
 

Red -  when the actual is higher than 3% of budget or target 
Yellow -  when the actual is within 3% of budget or target 
Green - when the actual is equal to or lower than budget or target 
 

 
Symbols where the color code applies- (Δ, □) 
   A  
  

INTERPRETATION OF CHARTS: 
 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 
Revenue, Expenditure, Capital Disbursement 

• Bulls eye shows the variance for YTD budget against actual for revenues, expenditures and capital disbursements  
• Bar graph shows total for the fiscal year budgeted(grey)-revenues, expenditures and capital disbursements against YTD 

actual(blue) 
• Horizontal line graph shows a YTD progress analysis as compared to the previous year 

 
Net Operating Cash 

• Bar graph shows monthly net operating cash provided/used 
• Line graph denoted by (Δ) compares YTD actual against budget (Ο). This element is dynamically color coded* 

 
Operating Revenues 

• Bar graph shows monthly operating revenues  
• Line graph denoted by (Δ) compares YTD revenue against budget (Ο). This element is dynamically color coded* 

 
Operating Expenses 

• Bar graph shows monthly operating expenses  
• Line graph denoted by (Δ) compares YTD expenditure against budget (Ο). This element is dynamically color coded** 

 
Capital Disbursements 

• Bar graph shows monthly capital disbursements  
• Line graph denoted by (Δ) compares YTD disbursements against budget (Ο). This element is dynamically color coded** 

 
Operating Cash Balance 

• Bar graph shows monthly average cash balance compared to the target of $125 million; indicated by grey dotted line 
 
Delinquent Account Receivables 

• Bar graph shows monthly Receivables to Revenue ratio against target of 3%; indicated by grey dotted line. This element is 
dynamically color coded** 

• Line graph denoted by (Δ) shows delinquency in actual dollars 
 
Investment Cash Earnings 

• Bar graph shows monthly investment cash earnings  
• Line graph denoted by (Δ) compares the YTD earnings against budget (Ο). This element is dynamically color coded* 

 
Core Investments Yield 

• Bar graph shows the monthly investment yield compared to the monthly target (grey) benchmark as set by the US Treasury 
Bill. This element is dynamically color coded*  

 
Short Term Investment Yield 

• Bar graph shows the monthly short term investment yield compared to the monthly short term target (grey) benchmark as set 
by the US Treasury Bill. This element is dynamically color coded*  

 
 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

45



Dynamic Color Coding Legend  
 
*** **** 
Red-      when the actual is lower than 5% of budget or target 
Yellow-  when the actual is within 5% of budget or target 
Green-   when the actual is equal to or higher than budget or target 
 

Red-      when the actual is higher than 5% of budget or target 
Yellow-  when the actual is within 5% of budget or target 
Green-   when the actual is equal to or lower than budget or target 
 

 
 
Symbols where the color code applies- (Δ, □) 
 
  B 

CUSTOMER CARE AND OPERATIONS HIGHLIGHTS 

 
Call Center Performance 

• Bar graph shows monthly percentage of calls answered within 40 seconds against target of 85%; indicated by grey dotted 
line. This element is dynamically color coded***   

• Line graph denoted by (Ο) shows the number of calls received by the call center every month  
 
Command Center Performance 

• Bar graph shows monthly percentage of calls answered within 40 seconds against target of 85%; indicated by grey dotted 
line. This element is dynamically color coded***   

• Line graph denoted by (Ο) shows the number of calls received by the command center every month 
 
First Call Resolution (FCR) 

• Bar graph shows monthly percentage of calls resolved on first contact against target of 75%; indicated by grey dotted line. 
This element is color dynamically coded***   

 
Emergency Response Time 

• Bar graph shows the percentage of emergency calls responded to within 45 minutes against target of 90%; indicated by grey 
dotted line. This element is dynamically color coded***   

• Line graph denoted by (Ο) shows the total calls dispatched per month 
 
Fire Hydrants Out of Service (OOS) 

• Bar graph shows total hydrants not available for use against target of 91; indicated by grey dotted line. This element is 
dynamically color coded****  

• The bar graph is stacked (blue) to show hydrants that are inaccessible. Inaccessible  hydrants are not measured against the 
target of 91 

 
Fire Hydrant Inspections and Maintenance 

• Bar graph shows the total number of fire hydrants repaired per month 
 
Fire Hydrant Replacements 

• Bar graph shows the total number of hydrants replaced per month against target of 21; indicated by grey dotted line. This 
element is dynamically color coded*** 

 
Total Applications Processed within Service Level Agreement (SLA) 

• Bar graph shows 
 the number of permits processed per month(dark blue)  
 the number of permits processed within SLA per month(light blue) 

• Line graph denoted by (Ο) shows the percentage of permits processed vs. processed within SLA 
 
 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

46



Dynamic Color Coding Legend  
 
*** **** 
Red-      when the actual is lower than 5% of budget or target 
Yellow-  when the actual is within 5% of budget or target 
Green-   when the actual is equal to or higher than budget or target 
 

Red-      when the actual is higher than 5% of budget or target 
Yellow-  when the actual is within 5% of budget or target 
Green-   when the actual is equal to or lower than budget or target 
 

 
 
Symbols where the color code applies- (Δ, □) 
 
  C 

LOW INCOME ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

 
SPLASH Contributions 
• Bar graph shows monthly SPLASH contributions  
• Line graph denoted by (Δ) shows the YTD contributions against target (Ο). This element is color coded*** 
 
Customer Assistance Program (CAP) 
• Bar graph shows monthly CAP assistance  
• Line graph denoted by (Δ) shows the YTD contributions against budget (Ο). This element is color coded*** 
 
 

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Lead and Copper Rule (LCR) Compliance 
• Line graph denoted by (Δ, Ο) shows semi-annual LCR monitoring results against target of 15ppb; indicated by grey dotted line. 

This element is color coded**** 
 
Total Coliform Rule (TCR) 
• Line graph denoted by (Δ)shows total coliform positives against the EPA maximum contaminant level of 5%. This element is 

color coded**** 
 
Biosolids Production 
• Bar graph shows monthly average daily biosolids production 
 
Total Nitrogen 
• Line graph denoted by (Δ) shows monthly total nitrogen level against the current permit (dark grey) and 2015 permit (light grey) 

levels. This element is color coded**** 
 
Plant Effluent Flow 
• Line graph denoted by (Δ) shows monthly influent flow against the plant design average limit of 370MGD. This element is color 

coded**** 
 
Excess Flow 
• Line graph denoted by (Δ) shows monthly excess flow 
 
Water Main Leaks 
• Bar graph shows the water main leaks reported 
• The bar graph is stacked(dark blue) to show the pending leaks carried over from the previous month if any; bar graph(light blue) 

shows new water main leaks reported for the given month 
• Line graph denoted by (Ο) shows the number of main leaks repaired per month 
 
Water Valve Leaks 
• Bar graph shows the water valve leaks reported 
• The bar graph is stacked(dark blue) to show the pending leaks carried over from the previous month if any; bar graph(light blue) 

shows new water valve leaks reported for the given month 
• Line graph denoted by (Ο) shows the number of valve leaks repaired per month 
 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

47



Dynamic Color Coding Legend  
 
*** **** 
Red-      when the actual is lower than 5% of budget or target 
Yellow-  when the actual is within 5% of budget or target 
Green-   when the actual is equal to or higher than budget or target 
 

Red-      when the actual is higher than 5% of budget or target 
Yellow-  when the actual is within 5% of budget or target 
Green-   when the actual is equal to or lower than budget or target 
 

 
 
Symbols where the color code applies- (Δ, □) 
 
  D 

 
Non Revenue Water 
• Bar graph shows the volume of water purchased(dark blue) and water sold(light blue) per quarter 
• Line graph denoted by (Δ, Ο) shows the Infrastructure Leakage Index(ILI) for the current and previous year 
 
Sewer Main Backups 
• Bar graph shows the sewer main backups reported  
• The bar graph is stacked(dark blue) to show the pending backups carried over from the previous month if any; bar graph(light 

blue) shows new sewer main backups reported for the given month 
• Line graph denoted by (Ο) shows the number of main backups resolved per month 
 
Sewer Lateral Backups 
• Bar graph shows the sewer lateral backups reported  
• The bar graph is stacked(dark blue) to show the pending backups carried over from the previous month if any; bar graph(light 

blue) shows new sewer laterals backups reported for the given month 
• Line graph denoted by (Ο) shows the number of lateral backups resolved per month 

 
Combined Sewer dry weather Overflow (CSO) Events 
• Bar graph shows dry weather CSO events per month 
• Line graph denoted by (Ο) shows the volume in Million Gallons(MG) per dry weather CSO event 
  
Open Positions 
• Bar graph (dark blue) shows open positions carried over from the previous month. 
• Bar graph (light blue) shows new positions added in the given month. 
• Bar graph (olive green) shows positions filled in the given month. 
• Bar graph (orange) shows positions cancelled in the given month. 
• Bar graph (light green) shows net remaining open positions at the end of the given month. 
 
Electricity Usage Summary 
• Bar graph shows total electricity consumption per month  
 
Electricity Usage by Service Area 
• Shows a monthly breakdown by service area of electricity usage  
• Dark blue shows for Waste Water Treatment Service Area 
• Light blue shows Water Pumping Service Area 
• Brown shows Sewer Pumping Service Area 
 
Employee Lost Time Incidence Rate 
 
• Bar graph shows quarterly Employee Lost Time (LT) incidence rate as compared to the National average LT rate of 2.0; indicated 

by grey dotted line. Light blue represents the previous year, brown represents the year before previous and dark blue the current 
fiscal year.  

• Scatter graph denoted by (Δ, Ο) shows the number of Lost Time accidents and comparison is also made between the current year 
and the previous years. 

 
Contractor Lost Time Incidence Rate 
 
• Bar graph shows quarterly Contractor Lost Time (LT) incidence rate.  Light blue represents the previous year, brown represents 

the year before previous and dark blue the current fiscal year.  
• Scatter graph denoted by (Δ, Ο) shows the number of Lost Time accidents and comparison is also made between the current year 

and the previous years. 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

48



Dynamic Color Coding Legend  
 
*** **** 
Red-      when the actual is lower than 5% of budget or target 
Yellow-  when the actual is within 5% of budget or target 
Green-   when the actual is equal to or higher than budget or target 
 

Red-      when the actual is higher than 5% of budget or target 
Yellow-  when the actual is within 5% of budget or target 
Green-   when the actual is equal to or lower than budget or target 
 

 
 
Symbols where the color code applies- (Δ, □) 
 
  E 

 
Vendor Payment Performance 
 

• Bar graph shows monthly Vendor Payment Performance percentage against monthly target of 97%; indicated by grey dotted 
line. This element is dynamically color coded** 

• Line graph denoted by (Ο) shows the YTD vendor payment performance %. 
 

DC Water Board of Directors - VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)

49



Consent Agenda

Summary of Contracts

231st Meeting of the DC Water Board of Directors

Thursday, May 4, 2017

Joint Use Contracts

1. Resolution No. 17-25, Contract No. 17-PR-DFM-02, AN Exterior, Inc. The 
purpose of the contract is to provide roof replacement at the Biosolids Building located 
at Blue Plains.  The contract amount is $1,349,846.10. (Recommended by 
Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

2. Resolution No. 17-26, Option Year One of Contract No, 16-PR-DWT-13A, Urban 
Service Systems Corporation.  The purpose of the option is to continue providing 
hauling/disposal services for grit/screening collected at the Primary Treatment Facility.  
The option amount is $850,000. (Recommended by Environmental Quality and 
Operations Committee 04/20/17)

3. Resolution No. 17-27, Contract No. 16-PR-DMS-43, Electric Motor & 
Contracting Co., Inc. (EMC). The purpose of the additional funding is to cover 
previously-forecasted maintenance of large motors throughout all DCWater facilities.  
The additional funding amount is $700,000. (Recommended by Environmental Quality 
and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

4. Resolution No. 17-28, Supplemental Agreement No. 1 of Contract No. DCFA 
#463-WSA, AECOM Services of DC. The purpose of the supplemental agreement 
is to continue providing onsite construction management (CM) of Division Z-Popular 
Point Pumping Station Replacement (DC Clean Rivers Project) construction contract.  
The supplemental agreement amount is $1,992,719.57 (Recommended by 
Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

5. Resolution No. 17-29, Contract No. DCFA #485-WSA, Pure Technologies US, 
Inc.  The purpose of the contract is to provide inspection and condition assessment, 
data analysis, and recommended rehabilitation options for large diameter water mains 
and major sewers in the District of Columbia and, to a limited extent, in the neighboring 
jurisdictions.  The contract not-to-exceed amount is $10,000,000. (Recommended by 
Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

6. Resolution No. 17-30, Contract No. DCFA #490-WSA, Arcadis District of 
Columbia, PC.  The purpose of the contract is to provide inspection and condition 
assessment, data analysis, and recommended rehabilitation options for large diameter 
water mains and major sewers in the District of Columbia and, to a limited extent, in 

DC Water Board of Directors - VIII.  Summary of Contracts

50



the neighboring jurisdictions.  The contract not-to-exceed amount is $10,000,000. .
(Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

7. Resolution No. 17-31, Change Order No. 7 of Contract No, 130060, American 
Contracting & Environmental Services.  The purpose of the change order is to 
compensate the contractor for impacts to the construction schedule due to the 
emergency repair of the 72-inch force main, the required heavy cleaning of the Upper 
Potomac Interceptor Relief Sewer, and major repair of Sewage Pump 1 (SP-1) due to 
inoperability.  The change order amount is $1,762,011. (Recommended by 
Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

Non-Joint Use Contracts

8. Resolution No. 17-33, Change Order No. 7 of Contract No. 070110, CPP 
Construction Company.  The purpose of the change order is to provide temporary 
stabilization and abatement for the Watchman’s Tower building and to modify remote 
site unit equipment to comply with new DC Water SCADA equipment standards.  The 
change order amount is $757,421. (Recommended by Environmental Quality and 
Operations Committee 04/20/17)

9. Resolution No. 17-34, Change Order No, 5 of Contract No. 140160, SAK 
Construction, LLC.  The purpose of the change order is to install 1.681 LF of CIPP 
between 12”-24” diameter at various locations, rehabilitate lateral connections and 
approximately 25 manholes located throughout the District.  The change order amount 
is $1,291,775.  (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 
04/20/17)

10. Resolution No. 17-35, Contract No. 150170, J. Fletcher Creamer & Son, Inc.
The purpose of the contract is to provide cleaning, lining and replacement of water 
mains to eliminate water quality issues due to tuberculation of the unlined casts iron 
mains in the project area.  The contract not-to-exceed amount is $4,294,482.  
(Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)

DC Water Board of Directors - VIII.  Summary of Contracts

51



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

52



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

53



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

54



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

55



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

56



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

57



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

58



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

59



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

60



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

61



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

62



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

63



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

64



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

65



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

66



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

67



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

68



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

69



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

70



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

71



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

72



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

73



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

74



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

75



DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

76



010-8455-6254/1/AMERICAS

Presented and Adopted: May 4, 2017
Subject:  Approving the Extension of the Credit Facility for the Series

2014B Subordinate Bonds

#17-32
RESOLUTION

OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

OF THE
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the District of Columbia Water and Sewer Authority 
(“Authority”), at its meeting on ____________, by a vote of ________ (_) in favor and 
_______ (_) opposed, decided to approve the following:

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized pursuant to the Water and Sewer Authority 
Establishment and Department of Public Works Reorganization Act of 1996, as amended, 
D.C. Code Section 34-2201.01 et seq. (the “WASA Act”), and the District of Columbia
Water and Sewer Authority Act of 1996, Public Law 104-184; 110 Stat. 1696, to issue 
revenue bonds for undertakings authorized by the WASA Act, including to finance or 
refinance any cost, as defined in the WASA Act, D.C. Code Section 34-2202.01(2); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the WASA Act, the Authority and Wells Fargo 
Bank, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”) (its predecessors in that capacity 
having been Norwest Bank Minnesota, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A.), 
entered into the Master Indenture of Trust, dated as of April 1, 1998 (the “Master 
Indenture” and, as supplemented and amended, the “Indenture”), to provide for financing 
or refinancing the acquisition, construction, operation, maintenance and extension of the 
System (as defined in the Master Indenture) by the issuance of bonds, notes and other 
obligations payable solely from Net Revenues (as such terms are defined in the Master 
Indenture); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has heretofore issues its Public Utility Subordinate Lien 
Multimodal Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B (the “Series 2014B Subordinate Bonds”) to 
finance certain Costs of the System, retire Series C Notes, and pay certain costs of 
issuance, and that such Series 2014B Subordinate Bonds are secured by, inter alia, a 
Standby Bond Purchase Agreement which expires on July 23, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the Authority now intends to extend the maturity of such Standby 
Bond Purchase Agreement with the Bank (the “Extension”); and

WHEREAS, there has been presented at this meeting a proposed Preliminary 
Term Sheet stating the business and legal parameters of the Extension, all as attached 
hereto as Exhibit A to this Resolution (the “Term Sheet”); and

DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

77



2

010-8455-6254/1/AMERICAS

WHEREAS, the Finance and Budget Committee met on April 27, 2017, to review 
the Extension and has recommended approval of this Resolution by the Board.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that:

Section 1. Definitions and Interpretations.  Unless otherwise defined 
herein and unless the context indicates otherwise, the terms used herein and defined in 
the Indenture (including the Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture) shall have the meanings 
assigned to them therein. In addition, the following terms used as defined terms in this 
Resolution shall have the meaning ascribed to them in this Section:

“Authorized Officials” means the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board 
and the General Manager, Chief Financial Officer, Controller, Director Budget Department 
and Manager, Treasury, Debt and Risk of the Authority, provided that any official other 
than the Chairman shall be designated by the Chairman as his designee for the purpose 
of executing and delivering any document authorized hereunder.

“Financial Advisor” means Public Financial Management, Inc. and G-Entry 
Principle, P.C.

“Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture” means the Sixteenth Supplemental 
Indenture of Trust by and between the Authority and the Trustee, dated as of the same 
date as and relating to the Series 2014B Subordinate Bonds.

“Standby Bond Purchase Agreement” means collectively, the Standby Bond 
Purchase Agreements, each dated July 23, 2014, entered into for the Series 2014B 
Subordinate Bonds under the Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture.

Any reference to the Authority or the Board, or to their members or officers, 
or to other public officers, boards, commissions, departments, institutions, agencies, 
bodies or entities, shall include those which succeed to their functions, duties or 
responsibilities by operation of law and also those who at the time may legally act in their 
place.

Section 2. Credit Facility Amendment and Extension.  In order to 
formalize the Extension, the Authorized Officials are, and each of them is, authorized in 
connection with the Extension, to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name of and 
on behalf of the Authority, an amendment to the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement, with 
substantially the same terms as are described in the Term Sheet.

The Authorized Officials and any other member, officer or employee of the 
Authority are each authorized to execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority, such 
other certificates, documents and instruments related to the Extension as are necessary 
in connection with the transactions authorized in this Resolution, and to do all other things 
required of them or the Authority pursuant to the Indenture, the Sixteenth Supplemental 
Indenture, the amendment to Standby Bond Purchase Agreement and this Resolution.

DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

78



3

010-8455-6254/1/AMERICAS

No covenant, agreement or obligation contained herein shall be deemed to 
be a covenant, agreement or obligation of any present or future member of the Board or 
officer, employee or agent of the Authority in his or her individual capacity, and neither 
the members of the Board nor any officer of the Authority executing the amendment to 
the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement shall be liable personally thereon or be subject 
to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the execution thereof.  No member 
of the Board or officer, employee, agent or advisor of the Authority shall incur any personal 
liability with respect to any other action taken by him pursuant to this Resolution or the 
Indenture or any other document authorized by this Resolution, provided such member, 
officer, employee, agent or advisor acts in good faith.

Section 3. Official Statement: Continuing Disclosure. The Authorized 
Officials are each hereby further authorized to supplement and amend the Official 
Statement that in the judgment of an Authorized Official, is necessary and appropriate in 
order to make the Official Statement not materially misleading, and to comply with 
applicable securities laws or otherwise to enable the Authority to fulfill its obligations 
regarding the Official Statement under its existing Continuing Disclosure Agreements.

Section 4. General.  The appropriate officers and employees of the 
Authority will do all things necessary and proper to implement and carry out the orders 
and agreements set forth or approved in this Resolution for the proper fulfillment of the 
purposes thereof.  

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

Secretary to the Board of Directors

DC Water Board of Directors - lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)

79



DC Water Board of Directors - X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

80



DC Water Board of Directors - X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

81



DC Water Board of Directors - X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

82



DC Water Board of Directors - X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

83



DC Water Board of Directors - X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

84



DC Water Board of Directors - X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

85



DC Water Board of Directors - X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

86



DC Water Board of Directors - X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

87



DC Water Board of Directors - X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

88



DC Water Board of Directors - X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)

89


	I.  Call to Order (Chairman Matthew Brown)
	V.  Committee Reports
	1.  Environmental Quality and Operations Committee (Howard Gibbs)
	2.  Human Resource and Labor Relations Committee (Bradley  Frome)
	3.  Audit Committee (Nicholas Majett)
	4.  Finance and Budget Committee (Matthew Brown)

	VII.  CEO/General Manager's Report (CEO/General Manager, George Hawkins)
	VIII.  Summary of Contracts
	lX. Consent Items (Joint Use)
	1. Approval to Execute Contract No. 17-PR-DFM-02, AN Exterior, Inc. - Resolution No. 17-25 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)
	2.  Approval to Execute Option Year One of Contract No. 16-PR-DWT-13A, Urban Service Systems Corporation - Resolution No. 17-26 (Recommended byy Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)
	3.  Approval to add Funding to Contract No. 16-PR-DMS-43, Electric Motor & Contracting Co., Inc. (EMC) – Resolution No. 17-27 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)
	4.  .Approval to Execute Supplemental Agreement No. 1 of Contract No. DCFA-#463-WSA, AECOM Services of DC – Resolution No. 17-28 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)
	5.   Approval to Execute Contract No. DCFA #485-WSA, Pure Technologies US, Inc. – Resolution No. 17-29 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)
	6.   Approval to Execute Contract No. DCFA #490-WSA, Arcadis District of Columbia, PC – Resolution No. 17-30 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)
	7.   Approval to Execute Change Order No. 7 of Contract No. 130060, American Contracting & Environmental Services – Resolution No. 17-31 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)
	8.  Approval to Execute the Extension of the Credit Facility for the Series 2014B Subordinate Bonds – Resolution No. 17-32 (Recommended by Finance and Budget Committee 04/27/17)

	X.  Consent Items (Non-Joint Use)
	1.   Approval to Execute Change Order No. 7 of Contract No. 070110, CPP Construction Company – Resolution No. 17-33 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)
	2.    Approval to Execute Change Order No. 5 of Contract No. 140160, SAK Construction, LLC – Resolution No. 17-34 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)
	3.   Approval to Execute Contract No. 150170,, J. Fletcher Creamer & Son, Inc.  – Resolution No. 17-35 (Recommended by Environmental Quality and Operations Committee 04/20/17)


